
i

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL
PUBLIC SERVICE PLAZA
CIVIC CENTRE ROAD
HAVANT
HAMPSHIRE P09 2AX

Telephone: 023 9247 4174
Fax: 023 9248 0263
Website: www.havant.gov.uk

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE AGENDA

Membership:      Councillor Buckley (Chairman)

Councillors Hart, Heard, Keast, Satchwell, Howard and Patrick

Meeting: Development Management Committee

Date: 4 February 2016

Time: 5.00 pm

Venue: Hurstwood Room, Public Service Plaza, Civic Centre Road, 
Havant, Hampshire PO9 2AX

The business to be transacted is set out below: 

Nick Leach
Monitoring Officer

26 January 2016

Contact Officer: Jack Caine 023 92446230
Email:  jack.caine@havant.gov.uk

Page

PART A - (Items Open for Public Attendance)

1 Apologies for Absence  

To receive and record apologies for absence. 

2 Minutes  

To approve the minutes of the Development Management Committee 
held on  14 January 2016 

To Follow

http://www.easthants.gov.uk/


ii

3 Matters Arising  

4 Site Viewing Working Party Minutes  

To receive the minutes of the Site Viewing Working Party held on 28 
January 2016 

To Follow

5 Declarations of Interest  

To receive and record declarations of interests from members present 
in respect of the various matters on the agenda for this meeting. 

6 Chairman's Report  

The Chairman to report the outcome of meetings attended or other 
information arising since the last meeting of the Committee. 

7 Matters to be Considered for Site Viewing and Deferment  

The Committee are invited to consider any matters they wish to 
recommend for site viewing or deferment. 

8 Deputations  

To receive requests to make a deputation to Committee. 

9 Applications for Development and Development Control Matters  1 - 4

Part 1 - Applications Viewed by the Site Viewing Working 
Party

10 APP/15/01397 - 10-12 High Street, Emsworth  

Proposal:       Change of use from vacant class A2 unit to mixed class 
A1/A3 coffee shop.

 

5 - 22



iii

GENERAL INFORMATION

IF YOU WOULD LIKE A VERSION OF THIS AGENDA IN LARGE PRINT, 
BRAILLE, AUDIO OR IN ANOTHER LANGUAGE PLEASE CONTACT 
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES ON 023 92 446 231

Internet

This agenda and its accompanying reports can also be found on the Havant 
Borough Council website: www.havant.gov.uk.  Would you please note that 
committee reports are subject to changes and you are recommended to 
regularly check the website and to contact Jack Caine (tel no: 023 92446230) 
on the afternoon prior to the meeting for details of any amendments issued.

Public Attendance and Participation

Members of the public are welcome to attend the Public Service Plaza and 
observe the meetings. If you wish to address the Committee on a matter 
included in the agenda, you are required to make a request in writing (an 
email is acceptable) to the Democratic Services Team.  A request must be 
received by 5pm on Tuesday, 2 February 2016 . Requests received after this 
time and date will not be accepted

In all cases, the request must briefly specify the subject on which you wish to 
speak and whether you wish to support or speak against the matter to be 
discussed. Requests to make a deputation to the Committee may be sent:

By Email to: jack.caine@havant.gov.uk or DemocraticServicesTeam@havant.gov.uk

By Post to :

Democratic Services Officer
Havant Borough Council 
Public Service Plaza
Civic Centre Road
Havant, Hants P09 2AX

Delivered at:

Havant Borough Council
Public Service Plaza
Civic Centre Road
Havant, Hants P09 2AX

marked for the Attention of the “Democratic Services Team”

http://www.havant.gov.uk/
mailto:DemocraticServicesTeam@havant.gov.uk


iv

Order of Business

Please note that the agenda order will be revised so that “uncontested” items 
are considered prior to 6 pm. The Contact Officer for this agenda can be 
contacted on (023) 9244 6232) on the afternoon prior to the meeting for 
details of the revised order, details of which are circulated at the meeting.

Who To Contact If You Wish To Know The Outcome Of A Decision

If you wish to know the outcome of a particular item please contact the 
Contact Officer (contact details are on page i of the agenda)

Disabled Access

The Public Service Plaza has full access and facilities for the disabled.

Emergency Procedure

Please ensure that you are familiar with the location of all emergency exits 
which are clearly marked. In the unlikely event of an emergency an alarm will 
sound.

PLEASE EVACUATE THE BUILDING IMMEDIATELY.

DO NOT RE-ENTER THE BUILDING UNTIL AUTHORISED TO DO SO

No Smoking Policy

The Public Service Plaza operates a strict No Smoking policy in all of its 
offices, corridors, meeting rooms and toilets. 

Parking

Pay and display car parking is available in the Leisure Centre car park 
opposite the Civic Offices as shown on the attached plan.



v

 

BUS STOP KEY

Services Bus Stop

20, 21, 39, 63 1
20, 21,36**,39 2
23, 36** 3
23, 27**,37 4
23,27**,36**, 37 5

**  - also stops “hail and ride” opposite 
Stop 1 in Civic Centre Road





NON EXEMPT

             

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL

Development Management Committee

APPLICATIONS FOR DEVELOPMENT AND OTHER DEVELOPMENT 
CONTROL MATTERS
REPORT BY THE EXECUTIVE HEAD OF 
PLANNING AND BUILT ENVIRONMENT

Applications to be determined by the Council as the Local Planning Authority

Members are advised that all planning applications have been publicised in accordance 
with the Code of Practice for Publicity of Planning Applications approved at Minute 
207/25/6/92, and have been referred to the Development Management Committee in 
accordance with the Delegation Procedure for Determining Planning Applications 'Red 
Card System' approved at minutes 86(1)/4/97 and 19/12/97.

All views of consultees, amenity bodies and local residents will be summarised in the 
relevant report only if received prior to the report being prepared, otherwise only those 
views contrary to the recommendation of the Executive Head of Planning and Built 
Environment will be reported verbally at the meeting of the Development Management 
Committee.

Members are reminded that all letters received are placed upon the application 
file and are available for Development Management Committee Members to read 
on request. Where a member has concerns on such matters, they should speak 
directly to the officer dealing with the planning application or other development 
control matter, and if appropriate make the time available to inspect the file and 
the correspondence thereon prior to the meeting of the Development 
Management Committee.

The coded conditions and reasons for refusal included in the recommendations are set 
out in full in the Council's Manual of Model Conditions and Reasons for Refusal The 
standard conditions may be modified to meet the specific circumstances of each 
individual application.  Members are advised to bring their copies to the meeting of the 
Development Management Committee.

In reaching decisions on the applications for development and other development 
control matters regard should be paid to the approved development plan, all other 
material considerations, the views of consultees, the recommendations of the Executive 
Head of Planning and Built Environment, and where applicable the views of the Site 
Viewing Working Party.



The following abbreviations are frequently used in the officers' reports:

EHPBR Executive Head of Planning and Built Environment
HCSPR Hampshire County Structure Plan - Review
HBLP Havant Borough Local Plan (comprising the adopted Core Strategy 2011 

and saved policies from the District Wide Local Plan 2005. A related 
emerging document is the Draft Allocations Plan 2012)

HWLP Hampshire, Portsmouth & Southampton Minerals & Waste Local Plan
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 2012
HBCCAR Havant Borough Council Conservation Area Review
AONB Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty
CA Conservation Area
LB Listed Building included in the list of Buildings of Architectural or Historic 

Interest
SAC Special Area of Conservation
SINC Site of Importance for Nature Conservation
SPA Site identified as a Special Protection Area for the protection of birds 

under the Ramsar Convention
SSSI Site of Special Scientific Interest
FP Definitive Footpath
POS Public Open Space
TPO Tree Preservation Order
HBC Havant Borough Council
GPDO Town & Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order
DMPO Town & Country Planning (Development Management 

Procedure)(England) Order 2010 amended
UCO Town & Country Planning  (Use Classes) Order
S106 Section 106 Agreement
Ha. Hectare(s)
m. Metre(s)

RECOMMENDATIONS

To reach decisions on the applications for development and other matters having regard 
to the approved development plan, all other material considerations, the views of 
consultees, the recommendations of the Executive Head of Planning and Built 
Environment, and where applicable the views of the Site Viewing Working Party.

Implications 

Resources: 

None unless detailed in attached report.

Legal:

Details set in the individual reports



Strategy: 

The efficient determination of applications and making of other decisions under the 
Town & Country Planning Acts in an open manner, consistent with the Council’s 
planning policies,  Regional Guidance and Central Government Advice and Regulations 
seeks to ensure the appropriate use of land in the public interest by the protection and 
enhancement of the natural and historic environment; the promotion of the economy; 
the re-use of existing buildings and redevelopment of ‘brownfield’ sites; and the 
promotion of higher densities and good quality design in all new development all of 
which matters assist in promoting the aims of the Council’s Community Strategy.

Risks: 

Details set out in the individual reports

Communications: 

Details set out in the individual reports

Background Papers: 
Individual Applications with Case Officers

Julia Potter
Executive Head of Planning and Built Environment

Nick Leach
Monitoring Officer





  
 
     

——————————————————————————————————————
Site Address: 10-12 High Street, Emsworth, PO10 7AW
Proposal:       Change of use from vacant class A2 unit to mixed class A1/A3 coffee 
shop.
Application No: APP/15/01397 Expiry Date: 12/02/2016
Applicant: Premier Coffee Ltd Team: Team 2
Agent: Mr Millett 

Walsingham Planning
Case Officer: Rachael McMurray

Ward: Emsworth

Reason for Committee Consideration: At Councillor Gibb Gray’s request 

EHPE Recommendation: GRANT PERMISSION
——————————————————————————————————————

1 Site Description 

1.1 The application site comprises the ground floor unit of No. 10-12 High Street, which is 
located within Emsworth Town Centre and within the designated Emsworth Conservation 
Area and Chichester Harbour Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. The site also forms 
part of a designated primary shopping frontage within the town centre. It forms the ground 
floor unit of a three-storey building with residential flats located on the first and second 
floors. The front elevation of the commercial unit includes three large black painted 
framed windows and a double width access door. 

1.2 The unit was previously occupied by Barclays Bank but has been vacant for one year. 
The unit has been subdivided and the application includes 276sqm of floorspace, with the 
proposal’s street frontage encompassing the access door and the two adjacent windows 
on the front elevation. The other smaller subdivided unit is unoccupied at present. The 
unit has access to an external space at the rear which is accessed via an alleyway from 
Spring Gardens. The flats above the unit are also accessed from a private courtyard 
leading off Spring Gardens. 

1.3 The application site sits in between the Crown Hotel to the north west, which is a Grade II 
listed building, and to the south east another more modern building comprising 
commercial units on the ground floor with residential apartments above. This is a 
common characteristic of many buildings within the High Street, resulting in a mixed use 
area of commercial and residential uses within the town centre. 

  2 Planning History 

APP/15/00706
Conversion of office space on the building's first floor to two apartments. Approved. 

APP/11/01391
Two internally illuminated fascia signs and one internally illuminated projecting sign. 
Approved 

05/50723/009
Two externally mounted air conditioning units and an acoustic screen. Approved.

03/50723/008
Creation of a level access into the building, removal of existing  handrails and relocation 



of the AT on the building's front elevation. Approved. 

3 Proposal 

3.1 The proposal is for a change of use from Class A2 to mixed Class A1/A3 uses. The unit 
would occupy part of No. 10-12 High Street which has been sub-divided internally to 
provide one larger and one smaller unit. The unit subject to this application would be the 
larger unit (276sqm) and includes the main entrance door adjacent to the Crown Hotel 
and two of the windows along the shop frontage. 

3.2 The cafe, for which the future occupier would be a franchise from Costa Coffee, would 
sell coffee and other hot and cold drinks, sandwiches, filled rolls, cakes, pastries, coffee 
beans, cafetieres, percolators, coffee cup and mugs and other related products. There 
would be a retail display unit and a food server / counter, together with 80 internal seats, 
food preparation area, toilets and a baby changing facility. The proposed opening hours 
are 0700-1800 daily. 

3.3 There would be no cooking on site and all sandwiches and cakes would be prepared and 
packaged off site and would be delivered to the unit 1-2 times daily via a 7.5 tonne 
vehicle. New signage is proposed however, this is subject to consideration under a 
separate application for advertisement consent ref: APP/15/01398. 

4 Policy Considerations 

National Planning Policy Framework 2012

Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) March 2011
CS11 (Protecting and Enhancing the Special Environment and Heritage of 

Havant Borough)
CS16 (High Quality Design)
CS20 (Transport and Access Strategy)
DM10 (Pollution)
DM14 (Car and Cycle Parking on Development (excluding residential))
DM2 (Protection of Existing Community Facilities and Shops)
DM5 (Control of  Class A3, A4 and A5 Food, Drink and Entertainment Uses)
 

Havant Borough Local Plan (Allocations) July 2014
DM20 (Historic Assets)
DM21 (Shop fronts, Signs, Security Shutters and Advertisements)
AL3 (Town, District and Local Centres)
 

Listed Building Grade: Adjacent to Grade II listed Crown Hotel.
Conservation Area: Emsworth

5 Statutory and Non Statutory Consultations 

Chichester Harbour Conservancy: 
No objections 

Conservation Officer: 
This application relates to the former Barclays Bank premises. It is a centrally located 
C20 building of very limited architectural interest. This proposal splits the unit nequally 
into two with the change of use of the larger unit into a mixed use class A1/A3 coffee 
shop. The issue to be determined is as to whether such a use is appropriate in policy 
terms and as the building lies within a conservation area, its impact on the character 



and appearance of that area.

The previous use as a bank premises provided a rather bland frontage to the street. 
Retail shops, cafes and similar uses by contrast provide a much more vibrant 
shopping frontage with active interaction with the street. Cafes and coffee shops are 
now an accepted part of shopping areas and their popularity tends to increase footfall. 
From a conservation area perspective the use of the premises as a coffee shop is 
therefore both appropriate and positive. By presenting a more active street frontage it 
should enhance the attractiveness of this important historic town. For these reasons I 
support the proposal.. 

Natural England: 
No objections 

Economic Development - Retail and Town Centres: 
Concern that the proposal will dilute the offer in Emsworth putting small independent 
businesses in extreme financial difficulty or result in closure.  

Development Engineer - Highways: 
No objections 

Traffic Management: 
No objections 

Environmental Health: 
No objections. Should complaints of odour come to our attention, we would investigate 
under our legislative provisions.

Waste Services Manager: 
Comments awaited - Members will be updated prior to the committee meeting. 

Planning Policy: 
No objections 

6 Community Involvement 

This application was publicised in accordance with the Council's Code of Practice for 
Publicity of Planning Applications approved at minute 207/6/92 (as amended), as a result 
of which the following publicity was undertaken:

Number of neighbour notification letters sent: 8

Number of site notices: One

Statutory advertisement: 01/01/2016

Number of representations received as at 22/01/16: 130 (111 against; 18 in favour; 1 no 
objection)

The representations received both for and against the application are summarised below: 

Against: 
 Proposal will harm the character and individuality of Emsworth 
 It will be detrimental to other local business as there are too many coffee shops already
 It will be detrimental to the unique nature of the high street- all local independent traders 
 Increase in litter as a result of 'takeaway cups' 



 Setting a precedent for other large 'impersonal' chains taking over local high streets
 Costa do not pay as much tax as other local independent businesses 
 Increase in opening hours and additional noise 
 Not in keeping with the local culture 
 Increase in parking in local residential roads - high parking charges in Emsworth 
 Rates and rents are already extortionate - making it impossible for local independent  

traders 
 Risk of empty units as a result of competition 
 It will harm the community spirit of Emsworth 
 Difficulty in accessing the bin store to the rear - increase of deliveries 
 Increase in danger to pedestrians 
 There is a Costa already in Havant 
 Emsworth shops are losing customers to Havant
 The village is already well catered for 
 There will be a loss of jobs 
 Concerns over where the Costa bins are to be placed 
 Is there going to be sound proofing to the flat above? 
 Is there going to be an outside seating area blocking up the pavement? 
 The signage is not in keeping.

For: 
 Costa will regenerate the town centre and halt the decline 
 Employment opportunities for local people 
 Costa offers reasonable prices as opposed to some of the other local cafes 
 Positive asset to the town 
 Strengthen the town by attracting more footfall into the town centre. 
 Costa is a positive, reputable and well established  company 
 Costa will bring variety into the town 
 Longer opening hours would benefit the local community
 Utilising an empty unit will bring business into the area 
 Costa would create  healthy competition 
 Emsworth already has a number of large chains 
 It will encourage younger people into the town centre. 
 There is a lack of baby changing facilities and disabled facilities - Costa will introduce 

these. 
 Costa is a welcome change 

7 Planning Considerations 

7.1 Having regard to the relevant policies of the development plan it is considered that the 
main issues arising from this application are:

(i) Principle of development
(ii) Impact of the change of use on the town centre 
(iii) Effect on the conservation area, Chichester Harbour AONB and adjacent listed 

building  
(iv) Impact upon local amenity
(v) Highway / parking considerations 

(i) Principle of development 

7.2 The site is located within an urban area where development is considered to be 
acceptable in principle subject to other development management considerations. In 
addition, this site is located within a designated town centre boundary and a primary 



shopping frontage. As such, Policy AL3 (Town, District and Local Centres) of the adopted 
Allocations Plan applies. The site is also located within the Emsworth Conservation Area 
and therefore Core Strategy Policy CS11 (Protecting and Enhancing the Special 
Environment and Heritage of Havant Borough) is relevant. Core Strategy Policy DM2 
which protects community facilities and local shops also applies as the proposal would 
result in the change of use of a bank, which can be considered a community facility. 
Finally, Core Strategy Policy DM5 (Control of A3, A4 and A5 uses) applies in terms of the 
need to consider the amenity impacts of such development. All these matters are 
considered in detail below.

(ii) Impact of the change of use on the town centre

7.3 The vacant premises was previously occupied by Barclays Bank, which falls under use 
class A2 as per the most recent Use Classes Order. A bank is considered to constitute a 
form of community facility as this provides a service to the local community. Policy DM2 
of the Local Plan requires that where proposals involve the loss of community uses or 
shops, applicants should submit marketing evidence to justify that the premises is no 
longer commercially viable or suitable for another community use before planning 
permission can be considered. 

7.4 However in the case of this application, as the proposed use for the premises is a cafe 
with an element of retail included, it is considered that this proposal would not result in 
the loss of a form of community use or a retail function. Leisure uses such as cafes are 
defined in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2012 as main town centres 
uses - a cafe can therefore be argued to provide a facility for the community in much the 
same way as a bank can and as such, it would not be appropriate to require the provision 
of marketing information in this case. Therefore the proposal is considered to accord with 
Policy DM2 of the Local Plan and no marketing information is required. 

7.5 A number of concerns have been raised with regard to the introduction of a branded 
coffee shop into the town centre, which is characterised by a higher proportion of 
independent businesses (including other coffee shops) than it is branded companies. The 
concerns here relate to the potential loss of business to the independents as a result of a 
loss of customers and therefore revenue and loss of employment. Also concerns have 
raised regarding the impact of the brand on the character of the town centre and setting a 
precedent for other branded companies to locate there, thus diluting the independent 
businesses which some feel is a main attraction of Emsworth. These concerns are 
acknowledged, however it is not within the remit of the planning system to restrict 
competition and control who can and cannot occupy a premises based on whether they 
are independent or branded. What must be considered as part of this application is a land 
use change from A2 to A1/A3, and not who the occupier of the premises would be as this 
may change in the future based on the viability of the business.  Although the Council 
does encourage independent local businesses within its town, district and local centres, it 
could not justify a refusal of the application based on the applicant being a branded 
company and how this might impact on local businesses as ultimately there is no tangible 
evidence to prove this would occur and if so, to what extent. 

7.6 Policy AL3 advises that development proposals should contribute to the vitality and 
viability of the town centre, promote and enhance the shopping areas, retain at least 50% 
of the units in an unbroken run of primary frontage in retail (A1) use, generate pedestrian 
activity within the shopping area by being open during the day to visiting members of the 
public and provide a shop front within the primary shopping area with a display window.  
Overall it is considered that the proposal would accord with the criteria of this policy. 
Whilst the concerns raised by those objecting to the scheme are noted, it is considered 
that the positive elements which the proposal would provide such as increased local 
employment opportunities, the re-use of a vacant building, an active shop front, a 
potential community meeting place and a potential to increase the number of visitors to 



the town centre and therefore increasing footfall in general, are considered to outweigh 
the perceived negative aspects of the proposal. In addition to local planning policy, the 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2012 strongly supports and encourages 
competitive town centre environments which provide customer choice and respond to 
market signals and whether businesses are expanding or contracting. The proposal is 
considered to comply with this advice. 

(iii) Effect on the conservation area, Chichester Harbour AONB and adjacent listed 
building 

7.7 When making a decision on an application where the site is located adjacent to a listed 
building or within the conservation area, the local planning authority must have special 
regard to the desirability of preserving the adjacent building or its setting or any features 
of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses; and the desirability of 
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the Conservation Area. 
Preservation in this context means not harming the interest in the building, as opposed to 
keeping it utterly unchanged. These obligations, found in sections 16, 66 and 72 of the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, apply to all decisions 
concerning listed buildings and Conservation Areas. Protecting and enhancing the 
historic environment is also one of the core principles of the NPPF. 

7.8 The consultation response from the Conservation Officer sets out that the introduction of 
cafes and coffee shops tend to increase footfall and have the opportunity to provide a 
more vibrant shopping frontage than the former bank use with more active interaction 
with the street. On this basis the impact of the new use considered to be a positive one 
for the character of the historic town centre Conservation Area. 

7.9 In other respects the proposed external changes to the building are minimal and there 
would be no alteration to the entrance area which is the closest part of the building to the 
adjacent listed Crown Hotel. Concerns have been raised that the proposed signage 
would be harmful to the character of the Conservation Area. The acceptability of the 
signage is subject to a separate application APP/15/01398, whereby the full impact will 
be considered. However, given the context of the town centre location, in principle the 
scope of the signage is considered to be appropriate and its muted black colour would be 
in keeping with the colour palette of the local vernacular. Overall it is considered that the 
proposal would not have a harmful impact on the character or visual amenity of the 
Conservation Area or the adjacent listed building and therefore complies with Policy 
CS11 of the Local Plan and the NPPF. 

(iv) Impact upon local amenity 

7.10 Policy DM5 advises on the control of Class A3, A4 and A5 food, drink and entertainment 
uses and this is relevant to this proposal for a mixed Class A3/A1 use. Representations 
received have raised concerns that the proposal would result in a litter problem from 
takeaway cups and that an external seating area would cause an obstruction on the 
pavement and that the hours of operation would result in noise and disturbance. The 
policy advises that planning permission will only be granted where the following criteria 
are met: 

1. Measures are incorporated to mitigate the effect of the preparation of hot food. 
2. The installation of equipment in relation to hot food does not materially detract from the 
building. 
3. Adequate provision for the disposal, storage and collection of waste are in place 
4. There would be no adverse impact on parking and traffic movement that would be 
likely to create hazards 
5. The development would not cause unacceptable disturbance to the occupiers of 
nearby residential proprieties. 



6. Any marketing requirements are met. 

7.11 Having regard to the details submitted as part of the application, the nature of the food 
proposed to be sold would not require any cooking facilities to be installed in the unit, 
other than the toasting of sandwiches on request. As such, the use would not give rise to 
any cooking odours and no extraction equipment or flue is required. There would be no 
external seating area and the provision of this could be controlled via a planning condition 
and therefore no obstruction of the pavement would occur. No additional air conditioning 
or heating plant equipment is required. 

7.12 In terms of refuse, there would be two 1100L bins (one for general waste and one for 
recycling). These would be located in a service courtyard outside the demise of the site in 
Spring Gardens. There would be approximately three collections per week who already 
supply and service the town centre. There is no proposal for a bin outside of the shop 
front. The reason being goods are either consumed within the shop or taken away from 
the cafe, therefore negating the need for a bin outside the premises. There are other bins 
positioned around the town centre and these should satisfactorily provide for any refuse 
requirements as a result of takeaway cups. 

7.13 The proposed hours of operation are 0700-1800 which are not considered to be 
prejudicial to amenity given the town centre location and as such, would not result in 
undue noise and disturbance to residential properties within the immediate vicinity. 

(v) Highway / parking considerations  

7.14 The proposal does not include any specified parking provision for visitors or staff. 
However, this is similar to the majority of other businesses within the town centre given its 
historic character. Within close proximity to the site is a large public car park on South 
Street and one slightly further afield to the north in Palmers Road. In addition to this there 
is also limited on street parking available. Being located within a town centre, the site is 
also sustainable in terms of being accessible via bus and train. Concern has been raised 
that traffic congestion may be caused from customers parking outside the premises to 
collect takeaway coffees. However, on street parking along the High Street is controlled 
by the use of yellow lines and allocated parking laybys. Therefore, any unauthorised 
parking of cars are at risk of a parking penalty. 

7.15 Concern has also been raised that the large number of covers in the cafe would result in 
increased traffic to the town centre and put pressure on existing car parks. However, 
there is no evidence to suggest that the proposed use would result in more car-borne 
visitors than the previous bank use would have attracted and therefore a reason for 
refusal could not be justified on these grounds. Even if this were to occur, increased 
activity and footfall to the town centre would support its future viability and vitality. Both 
the Traffic Team and Highways Officer have been consulted and have not raised any 
objections to the proposal. 

7.16 In terms of deliveries, these would occur 1-2 times daily, typically by a 7.5 tonne vehicle. 
If deliveries are made during opening hours, then this would be via the back entrance 
from Spring Gardens and thus avoid disruption to town centre users in the main High 
Street. Deliveries made outside of opening hours would be via the main entrance. 

8 Conclusion 

8.1 It is acknowledged that a significant number of representations have been received to this 
application, largely driven by concerns over the intending occupier and the nature of the 
proposed use. The key issues in determining this application however relate to the impact 
of the change of use of the premises to A1/A3 use in land use terms, and not who the 
specific occupier of that use will be. Overall it is considered that the proposal would result 



in a number of positive factors to the town centre and Conservation Area and complies 
with all the relevant local planning policies and national planning policy. Therefore the 
application is recommended for approval. 

9 RECOMMENDATION:

That the Executive Head of Planning and Built Environment be authorised to GRANT 
PERMISSION for application APP/15/01397 subject to the following conditions: 

1 The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the 
date of this permission.
Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2 The premises shall only be open for trade or business between the hours of 
0700 and 1800. 
Reason: To protect the amenities of nearby residential properties and having 
due regard to policy DM10 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 
2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

3 There shall be no outside seating area unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority
Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the locality and having due regard to 
policies CS16 and CS11 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 
2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

4 No external extraction or plant equipment shall be installed without the prior 
written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the locality and having due regard to 
policies CS16 and CS11 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 
2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

5 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
following approved plans:

OS Plan Site Plan - 100022432
OS Block Plan - 100022432
Existing floor plan - DN: A56015/01
Proposed floor plan - DN: A56015/02
Existing elevations - A56015/03
Proposed elevations - A56015/04
Design and Access Statement - December 2015

Reason: - To ensure provision of a satisfactory development.

Appendices: 

A - Site Plan 
B - Block Plan 
C - Proposed floor plan 



D - Proposed elevations 

Additional Documents 

http://tinyurl.com/zx9yg8y 

http://tinyurl.com/zx9yg8y




SITE PLAN APPENDIX A

10-12 High Street
Emsworth

APP/15/01397
Please note due to a large number of representations received, 

it has not been possible to list all objectors and supporters on this plan.





BLOCK PLANAPPENDIX B





APPENDIX CPROPOSED FLOOR PLAN





APPENDIX DPROPOSED FRONT 
ELEVATION




	Agenda
	9 Applications for Development and Development Control Matters
	10 APP/15/01397 - 10-12 High Street, Emsworth
	APPENDIX A - Site Plan
	APPENDIX B - Block Plan
	APPENDIX C - Proposed Floor Plan
	APPENDIX D - Proposed Front Elevation


